
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

 
Monday, May 25, 2015

8:30 am

Knox Mountain Meeting Room (#4A)

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Confirmation of Minutes 3 - 5

Regular AM Meeting - May 11, 2015

3. Reports

3.1 Council Policy Framework 30 m 6 - 16

To provide Council with an overview of the policy framework and current
Council Policy Library, and seek direction on the conduct of a Council Policy
Library review.

3.2 Principles and Strategies for Financial Sustainability 120 m 17 - 39

To align the corporate framework, Council priorities, and Community’s
overarching values with financial principals and strategies

4. Resolution Closing the Meeting to the Public

THAT this meeting be closed to the public pursuant to Section 90(1) (a) and (e) of the
Community Charter for Council to deal with matters relating to the following:

• Municipal Appointments
• Property Acquisition, Disposition or Expropriation of Land or Improvements

5. Adjourn to Closed Session

6. Reconvene to Open Session

1



7. Issues Arising from Correspondence & Community Concerns

7.1 Mayor Basran, re: Issues Arising from Correspondence 30 m

8. Termination

2



3



4



5



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
May 25, 2015 
 

File: 
 

0160-20 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Deputy City Clerk 

Subject: 
 

Council Policy Review 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives the Council Policy Review report of the Deputy City Clerk, dated May 
25, 2015 for information; 
 
AND THAT Council initiates a comprehensive review of the current Council Policy Library, as 
attached to the May 25, 2015 report of the Deputy City Clerk, to be completed this Council 
term; 
 
AND THAT Council direct staff to prepare each policy of the Council Policy Library for review 
and presentation to Council during regular AM meetings, individually or in groups as 
appropriate, as outlined in the May 25, 2015 report of the Deputy City Clerk; 
 
AND THAT Council rescinds Council Policy No.26 City Bylaws as outlined in the report of the 
Deputy City Clerk dated May 25, 2015; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Council Policy No. 368 Council Policy Administration be approved by 
Council as amended and attached to the report of the Deputy City Clerk dated May 25, 2015. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To provide Council with an overview of the policy framework and current Council Policy 
Library, and seek direction on the conduct of a Council Policy Library review.   
 
 
Council Policy Framework 
Legislated authority, most commonly found under the Community Charter and the Local 
Government Act, provides the governing structure upon which local governments provide 
various services and programs to their residents.  Council governs through a policy framework 
that includes the adoption of Bylaws, the establishment of Council Policies and the passing of 
Council Resolutions.  Depending on the policy decision, the appropriate policy tool must be 
chosen.  For example, daily decisions that provide general direction may be made through a 

6



resolution of Council, while a policy decision intended to prohibit, permit or regulate certain 
citizen activities must be made by bylaw.    
 
 
Council Policy Library 
There are currently one hundred and forty-two (142) Council Policies in the Council Policy 
Library (Appendix A) which generally provide strategic direction on governance, programs and 
services for the City of Kelowna.  A Council Policy may provide for and define, an expected 
level of service and guide staff and citizens with clear actions intended to meet certain 
principles or goals.   
 
Over time, many of the policies in the Policy Library have been reviewed and amended based 
on changes in services or programs, or reviewed as part of a formal Council Policy review 
process that began as a good governance practice in the 1990’s.   
 
 
Council Policy Library Review 
Staff is recommending that the 2015 Council Policy Library Review be conducted by Council, 
and coordinated by Office of the City Clerk, during Regular Monday AM meetings over the 
council term.   
 
While the proposed scope of this review is for Council Policy as attached, it is intended that 
these policies will be reviewed, either individually or in relevant groups, within the context of 
the entire policy framework in order to identify possible duplication, integration, and ensure 
the appropriate policy tool is engaged for the desired action and outcome.    
 
Throughout the review, Council may also identify policy gaps for future policy development 
based on current Council priorities, initiatives and practices. Where possible, with each 
presentation to Council, staff will include background information, current legislation or 
regulations (if applicable), an indication of regular use and effectiveness, as well as a 
recommendation for consideration.   
 
To begin the review, staff is recommending that Council consider rescinding Policy 26 City 
Bylaws and amending Policy 368 Council Policy Administration as follows:    
 
 
Council Policy No. 26 – City Bylaws 
Recommendation: rescind 
Created in 1976, this policy assigned responsibility for the preparation and drafting of all City 
bylaws to the City Clerk.  As the City Clerk, through staff in the Office of the City Clerk, 
continues to provide consultation on the creation of policy through Bylaws, Council Policy, 
and Resolutions, it is recommended this policy be rescinded and the direction provided be 
added to Council Policy No. 368 through the proposed amendments noted below.  
 
 
Council Policy No.368 - Council Policy Administration 
Recommendation: amend as attached 
To ensure continuing good governance, Council endorsed Council Policy No.368, Council Policy 
Administration on July 15, 2013.  The proposed amendments to this policy will provide 
greater clarity on policy as a continuum and further refine the intent and scope for the policy 

7



framework.  The proposed amendments to the policy include the template itself and updated 
policy statements that will help guide future policy development. The policy assigns primary 
responsibility for consultation, management and distribution of all policy, and ensures that 
their regular review is responsive to Council direction.   
 
 
Conclusion 
Together, the policy tools provided to local governments through the legislation provide an 
essential and effective way to communicate priorities with actions.   The proposed review of 
the Council Policy Library will provide Council with the opportunity to ensure their policies 
support strategic priorities, are responsive to changes in the community, and remain 
consistent with the overall goals of the City.   
 
Existing Policy: Council Policy Administration No.368  
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements:  
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations:  
Personnel Implications: 
Internal Circulation:  
External Agency/Public Comments:  
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
K. Needham, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Approved for inclusion:          Rob Mayne, Divisional Director Corporate & Protective Services   

8



9



10



11



12



13



POLICY 368 

  

Council Policy 
Council Policy Administration 

APPROVED July 15, 2013 

 

City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4   
250 469-8500 
kelowna.ca 

Contact Department:  Office of the City Clerk 

   

Policy Statement 

Council Policies provide Council and the public with a clear communication link as to how Council, 

through policy, is leading the development of a safe, vibrant and sustainable City.  

 Purpose 

 a. To identify Council policy criteria; and 
 b. To establish procedures for the drafting, maintenance and review of Council policies. 
  
Background 

The Office of the City Clerk is responsible for drafting, publishing and maintaining policies adopted by 
Council.   These Council Policies mandate various functions of the City and where necessary, establish 
the procedures by which the functions are performed. 
 
Criteria: 

1. Generally, a Council Policy: 
a. is within Council’s jurisdiction; 
b. conveys a common understanding of Council’s direction; 
c. guides Council decisions to achieve consistent outcomes; 
d. relates to City programs and/or services;  
e. responds to local issues and has an impact on the community; and 
f. includes 

i. a policy statement;  

ii. a purpose; 

iii. a brief background or description of the issue;  

iv. a procedure for implementation; 

v. cross-reference to appropriate legislation, bylaw or other legislative authority; and 

vi. amendment dates 

vii. contact department information. 

Procedure: 

1. Council, the City Manager, or Divisional Directors may initiate policy proposals for consideration by Council. 

2. Council may, at any time, determine which, if any, policies need to be reviewed, amended or rescinded. 

3. The Office of the City Clerk will initiate a formal review of current policies once every Council term. 

4. The Office of the City Clerk is responsible for drafting, maintaining and distributing Council policies. 

5. Proposed Council policies will follow the established Report to Council process.  New or substantive policy 

draft amendments may be forwarded to a Regular Monday A.M. meeting of Council for review and discussion. 

6. All Council Policies are drafted by the Office of the City Clerk, and once approved by Council, are included in 

a Council Policy Library. 

7. The Council Policy Library will be accessible via the City web site.  

Amendments: 

R477/13/07/15 – Policy approved by Council. 

14



  

Policy 368 

Council Policy 
Council Policy Framework 

APPROVED July 15, 2013 

City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4   
250 469-8500 
kelowna.ca 

Contact Department:  Office of the City Clerk 

  

Guiding Principle 

Good Governance - Council governs through policy to address issues and concerns of the community and 
communicate priorities of the City of Kelowna. 

 
Purpose 
To identify the components of Council’s Policy Framework and establish the process for the 
establishment, management and review of council policy.  

  
Application 

Bylaw – an action that generally prohibits, permits or regulates activities is required by legislation to be 

enacted through a bylaw, and must follow certain statutory conditions for its adoption.  

 

Council Policy -  provides common understanding of strategic direction on matters related to governance, programs 

and services provided by the City of Kelowna and is endorsed through a resolution of Council,.  

Resolution of Council – is direction provided by Council, typically related to a single event, action or activity, following 

a motion and positive vote of Council.  

 
Policy Statements: 

 Council will, within 180 days of a new term, review their policy framework and provide direction regarding a 
formal review. 

 Council may, at any time, determine which, if any, policies need to be reviewed, amended or rescinded. 

 Council or staff through the City Manager may initiate policy proposals for consideration by Council.  

 A policy will be consistent with the overall goals of the City and guide Council decisions to achieve 
consistent outcomes.   
  

 The Office of the City Clerk has primary responsibility for the management of policy and the policy framework 
and will work with all contact departments to bring new and amended policies to Council for consideration.    

 Proposed new council policy, or substantive policy draft amendments will be provided to Council for review 
and discussion prior to endorsement consideration. 

 Once approved by Council, all council policies will be made accessible to the public via www.kelowna.ca , or 
upon request. 

 Each policy originates with a ‘Contact Department’, whose responsibility includes a periodic review for 
alignment to current priorities, practice, initiatives, legislation and regulations.   

Amendments 

Resolution: @/15/05/11 

Replacing: R477/13/07/15; R375/10/04/ 

 

15

http://www.kelowna.ca/


POLICY 26 

 

Council Policy 
City Bylaws 

APPROVED October 29, 1976 

 

City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4   
250 469-8500 
kelowna.ca 

RESOLUTION:  R375/10/04/26 – NO mention of Policy 26 in the April 26, 2010 minutes or report. 
REPLACING:  R342/99/04/26; R-1976/10/29 - Council Policies 6, 25, 26, 124, 164, 171, 211, and 241 be revised as attached to the report dated 

April 6, 1999 from the Council Policy Review Committee (April 6/99 report not found) 
DATE OF LAST REVIEW:  April 2010 
 

   

The responsibility of the preparation and drafting of all City bylaws is to be that of the City Clerk. Any departments 
requiring a bylaw for any purpose shall provide, in point form, the general bylaw requirements after which the City 
Clerk will prepare the bylaw, if necessary in consultation with a solicitor. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
REASON FOR POLICY  

 To identify responsibility for bylaw preparation. 

 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 

 Council Resolution. 

 

PROCEDURE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

 As noted in the policy. 

 

16



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
May 20, 2015 
 

File: 
 

0220-01 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Genelle Davidson, Financial Services Director 

Subject: 
 

Principles and Strategies for Financial Sustainability 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
That Council receives for information and discussion the draft Principles and Strategies for 
Financial Sustainability;  
 
AND THAT Council direct staff to report back at a future open AM Council meeting with 
finalized Principles and Strategies for Financial Sustainability.  
 
Purpose:  
 
To align the corporate framework, Council priorities, and Community’s overarching values 
with financial principles and strategies. 
 
 
Background: 
Strong financial management is one of the primary goals of the City of Kelowna. The City is 
facing new economic and growth realities and it is incumbent on the leadership to ensure 
alignment of the financial principles and strategies thereby ensuring that the City is resilient 
and sustainable. 
 
Staff met with Council last fall and then again in March to introduce the concept and process 
to build a sustainable financial model. The City has a good set of policies and practices in 
place however it is timely to update these to ensure they are meeting the long term needs of 
the community. Consideration of the new realities of 2015 and beyond will keep the City on 
target to be a financially sustainable government that provides valuable services to the 
residents. 
 
It is important that Council and City leadership be aware of, and adheres to the City’s core 
principles and financial strategies. The outcome of this series of workshops will provide the 
City with a documented financial strategy leading us into the future.  
 

17



 
 
Internal Circulation:  
Divisional Director Infrastructure; Divisional Director Corporate & Protective Services; 
Summer Effray, Communications 
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
G. Davidson, Financial Services Director 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 Rob Mayne, Div. Director Corporate & Protective Services 
 
 

  

18



P R I N C I P L E S  &  S T R AT E G I E S  

FOR FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY 

John Weninger P.Eng., MBA 
Scott Shepard BA, AScT 

19



W O R K S H O P  O B J E C T I V E  

 

To receive Council’s input and direction on the 

draft financial principles and strategies 

20



P R O J E C T  R AT I O N A L E  

Strong financial management is one of the primary goals of 
the City 

The City faces new economic and growth realities 

Council and staff are responsible to ensure that the City is in 
a good financial position to meet the needs of the 
community, now and in the future 

Formalize principles and strategies into one document to 
guide Council and staff in making financially sustainable 
decisions 

Align the corporate framework, council priorities, 
community’s overarching values with financial principles and 
strategies 

21



D E F I N I T I O N  O F  F I N A N C I A L  S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y  

A financially sustainable government provides 

valuable services to residents within available 

means while proactively taking measures to build 

and preserve services in the long run 

22



L O O K I N G  F O RWA R D  

April/May 2015 

Meetings with 

Staff 

May 25th 

Council 

Workshop #1 

June 2015 

Draft Principles 

and Strategies 

Document 

June 22nd 

Council 

Workshop #2 

July 2015 

Finalize Principles 

and Strategies 

Document 

Fall 2015 

Develop 

Policies 

2016 

Develop 

Performance 

Measures 

2016 and Beyond 

Build Plans 

This Project 

23



F R A M E W O R K  

Community Vision and 
Priorities 

Principles of Financial 
Sustainability  

Strategies for Financial 
Sustainability 

Financial Policies and 
Performance Measures 

Budgeting and Planning 

Financial 
Principles & 
Strategies 
Framework 

Council Priorities 
Corporate Framework 

Implementation 

24



P R I N C I P L E S  O F  F I N A N C I A L  S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y  

Balanced – Service levels are adequate and affordable  

Sufficient - Revenues and expenses support the 

community's service levels and long term goals   

Pragmatic - Financial decisions take measured risks 

while ensuring adequate service levels are protected 

Flexible - Financial policies allow for opportunities and 

changing circumstances  

Transparent – Financial strategies, plans and processes 

are accessible and visible 

25



T H E  F I N A N C I A L  B A L A N C E  

Money In Money Out 

Providing Services 

Servicing Debt 

Saving for the future 

Capital Projects 

(renewal, growth, new) 

Developer  
Contributions 

Debt 

Grants 

Taxation / 

Fees and Charges 

26



S T R AT E G I E S  F O R  F I N A N C I A L 

S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y  

27



TA X AT I O N  

1. Property taxes will be sufficient and kept as 

stable as possible 

2. Property taxes will be competitive with 

similar communities 

3. Property tax increases will be balanced among 

classes 

4. Property tax information will be transparent 

and easy to understand 

 

Objective: To ensure property taxes are sufficient to meet the community’s short and 
long-term needs 

28



U S E R  F E E S  A N D  C H A R G E S  

Objective: To ensure user fees and charges are sufficient to meet the community’s 
needs and reflect the true cost of service.  

1. Everyone pays a fair amount for the 

services they receive  

2. Services are reasonably accessible by all 

citizens 

3. User fees will be transparent and easy 

to understand 

29



R E S E RV E  A N D  S U R P L U S  F U N D S  

1. The purpose of each reserve will be 

documented and reviewed periodically  

2. On-going operating requests will not be funded 

from reserves 

3. Accumulated surplus will only be used as an 

emergency funding source 

Objective: To maintain sufficient reserves so the City has the flexibility to respond to 
opportunities, and maintain or improve levels of service 

30



D E B T  

1. General fund debt servicing costs will be maintained 

at or below a targeted level of annual taxation 

demand 

2. Preserve the City’s debt capacity by limiting the use 

of debt to fund only one time major capital projects 

3. If possible, pay down debt earlier when beneficial 

4. Financing for less than a five year term will be 

completed through internal financing  

Objective: To ensure debt financing is used strategically  to maintain the City’s 
financial sustainability 

31



G R A N T S  

1. Grants will only be pursued for community priority 

projects  

2. Grant funding will not increase the scope of a project 

without Council endorsement 

3. Project  funding must be sufficient without conditional 

grants 

4. Long-term financial planning will rely on un-

conditional grant opportunities only 

Objective: To pragmatically leverage grant opportunities  

32



D E V E L O P M E N T  F I N A N C I N G  

1. Ensure developers pay their fair share for growth related 

infrastructure through DCC’s and other tools 

2. Where appropriate, taxation funding can be used to provide 

additional capacity over and above the current OCP horizon 

 

Objective: To ensure growth helps to pay for the demand it creates and does not 
impose a financial burden on Kelowna taxpayers. 

33



A S S E T  R E N E WA L  A N D  R E P L A C E M E N T  

1. Invest in existing infrastructure renewal in accordance 

with the long term capital plan 

2. Balance funding for asset renewal against service 

levels and risk tolerance  

3. Lifecycle costs should be managed through 

preventative maintenance and renewal strategies 

 

Objective: To proactively manage and re-invest in City assets to meet service level 
needs for current and future generations. 

34



N E W  C A P I TA L  P R O J E C T S  

1. Prioritize new capital projects based on the multiple 

bottom line assessment and life cycle cost implications  

2. Emergent opportunities are evaluated  against existing 

priorities 

3. New capital investment is to follow the long term 

capital plan  

4. The decision making process for new capital is 

transparent and clearly communicated to Council, 

administration, and the community 

Objective: To ensure new capital projects are financially sustainable and aligned 
with community priorities.  

35



O P E R AT I N G  

1. Services will be reviewed periodically to ensure alignment with 

the community’s needs 

2. The true cost of service is understood by Council and 

administration and the community receives good value for 

services 

3. Future changes in operating costs will be considered in long term 

capital and financial planning 

4. On-going operating activities will only be funded through taxes, 

fees and charges 

 

 

Objective: To ensure operations receive sufficient financial support to provide 
programs and services to residents 

36



PA RT N E R S H I P S  

1. Pragmatically partner with other entities to deliver 

community services and amenities 

2. Explore access to new sources of capital 

3. Leverage existing assets to attract private sector 

involvement 

4. Leverage the expertise of outside partners 

 

Objective: To build community capacity and connections and leverage resources 
to provide more and better services  

37



L O O K I N G  F O RWA R D  

April/May 2015 

Meetings with 

Staff 

May 25th 

Council 

Workshop #1 

June 2015 

Draft Principles 

and Strategies 

Document 

June 22nd 

Council 

Workshop #2 

July 2015 

Finalize Principles 

and Strategies 

Document 

Fall 2015 

Develop 

Policies 

2016 

Develop 

Performance 

Measures 

2016 and Beyond 

Build Plans 

This Project 

38



Q U E S T I O N S  

39


	Agenda
	2. Draft Minutes - May 11 AM Meeting.pdf
	3.1 Council Policy Review.pdf
	3.1 Policy List.pdf
	3.1 Council Policy Administration - No. 368.pdf
	3.1 DRAFT Council Policy Framework - No.368.pdf
	3.1 City Bylaws - No. 26.pdf
	3.2 Principles and Strategies for Financial Sustainability.pdf
	3.2 Council Workshop May 25 2015(1).pdf

